

815 Riverside Drive P.O. Box 899 North Grosvenordale, CT 06255 Phone: 860-923-1852, Ext. 1 E-MAIL: wetlands@thompsonct.org www.thompsonct.org

MEETING MINUTES: Tuesday, August 9th, 2022 7:00PM

Via ZOOM Online Meeting Portal

A) The meeting was Called to Order at 7:09 PM by Vice Chairman Charlie Obert.

Members and staff present: Charlie Obert (Vice Chairman), Diane Chapin (Treasurer), Francesca Morano (Commissioner), Marla Butts (Wetlands Agent), Dan Malo (Recording Secretary), and Amy St.Onge (First Selectman)

Members of the public: Janet Blanchette, Jason Lavalle, Brandon Stand, and others.

- B) Appointment of Alternates n/a
- C) Minutes of Previous Meetings -

The July 12, 2022 Meeting Minutes were accepted as presented.

- D) Citizens Comments on Agenda Items none
- E) Applications
 - a) Old Applications
 - 1) WAA22017, Emily Kreidler, 31 Becola Rd (Assessor's map 116, block 24, lot 25), demolish existing home, reconstruct new home in same location with new well within the 100-foot upland review area for Little Pond, stamped received 6/15/22, issued 7/19/22, legal notice to be published 8/5/22, end of appeal period 8/20/22. No action required by the Commission.
 - 2) **IWA22020**, Lavallee Construction LLC, 0 Donovan Dr. (Assessor's map 3, block 80, lot 2D), filling 690 sq ft of wetlands and work in the 100-foot upland review area for the construction to 2 single family homes with wells & septic systems. Note: proposal involves a re-subdivision splitting the lot into 2 lots; site walk conducted on 3/12/22.

The project carries aspects of an active inland wetlands permit, which was extended to 2032 by state statute. The proposal is to divide Lot 2D into 2 lots. Wetlands Agent Marla Butts initiated discussion on items from the site plan which was originally presented at the July 2022 Inland Wetlands Meeting. The project has received septic design approval from Northeast District Department of Health.

Marla noted that the wetlands were not historic and were a product of the previous mining operation on site. Janet Blanchette of J&D Civil Engineers noted that the wetlands are confirmed to not be a vernal pool and do not provide flood storage or habitat. Charlie Obert asked if driveway runoff would flow into Donovan Drive. Janet Blanchette stated that a depression will be preserved in the front yard which will capture the site's water. Diane Chapin made a motion to approve the application. The motion was seconded by Fran Morano. **The motion was unanimously APPROVED.**

- b) New Applications
 - 1) WAA22023, Brandon Stand, 42 Logee Rd (Assessor's map 141, block 17, lots 1845, 184T & 184U), 10' X 32' addition to home on existing concrete slab, demolish existing detached garage with new 24' X 24' detached garage, construct 26' X 8' retaining wall all within 100- foot upland review area for Quaddick Reservoir, stamped received 8/2/22, under review. Marla Butts noted that the lots are leased by Quaddick Campground, Inc., and that the President of that corporation has signed off on this project. A Natural Diversity Database report has been received from DEEP. Marla is awaiting septic design approval from the Northeast District Department of Health, as the location of the garage has shifted from the original design.

A motion was made by Diane Chapin to discuss activity at 286 Thompson Hill Road. The motion was seconded by Fran Morano. **The motion was unanimously APPROVED.**

- 2) WAA22022, Inn Acquisition Associates, LLC, 286 Thompson Hill Rd (Assessor's map 103, block 40, lot 2), construct new single-family home with portion of driveway, septic system & utilities in 100-foot upland review area, stamped received 7/25/22, under review. Marla received a call about work being conducted in the wetlands. The installation of underground utilities had begun for a previously approved single-family home. The utility connection will be through Brookside Drive. The project is awaiting septic design approval. The lot will be known as '2D' when filed on the land records. No action is required by the Commission.
- 3) WAA22024, Thomas Shippee, 4 Logee Rd (Assessor's map 141, block 17, lot 184AAC), construct solar photovoltaic array on single pole in 100-foot upland review area for Quaddick Reservoir, stamped received 8/3/22, under review. No action is required by the Commission.
- F) Permit Extensions / Changes
 - a) Modification of IWA21009, Neil P LLC, 520 Riverside Drive. Janet Blanchette of J&D Civil Engineers asked the Commission to modify the building layout of an approved permit. The project will still incorporate a stormwater bio-retention area, maintain the proposed grades, and utilize the approved erosion and sediment control plan. Charlie Obert asked if the water supply is drawn from the river. Janet Blanchette stated that the water is from the municipal system. Discharge will go to waste treatment through the sanitary sewer. Marla saw no issue with the modification, however recommended that the stormwater bio-retention area be installed before the buildings, as a condition of approval. Janet Blanchette noted that it would be appropriate and easy to accomplish. Final plant species would be installed near completion. Fran Morano made a motion to modify the permit, with the condition that the stormwater bio-retention area be installed before the buildings. The motion was seconded by Diane Chapin. The motion was unanimously APPROVED.
 - b) Modification of WAA22013, Hany Youssef, 274 Riverside Dr (Assessor's map 87, block 95, lot 39), to include replacing existing concrete slab for the construction of commercial building on existing foundation for non-medical cannabis facility, Approval WAA22013 issued 6/27/22, request to modify submitted via email 8/2/2022. Issues with the old fire-damaged foundation necessitated the reconstruction of the foundation. Marla Butts has spoken with the property owner and contractor, who are aware of the site's sensitivity. Straw wattles were installed prior to work. Marla doesn't foresee adverse impact to the river. The Commission asked Marla to continue monitoring the project.

- G) Violations & Pending Enforcement Actions
 - a) Notice of Violation VIOL21023, Jamie Piette, 0 & 73 Center Street (Assessor's map16, block X, lots H & 2), unauthorized construction of retaining wall and associated backfill in Little Pond, issued 8/24/21. Marla recommended, and the Commission voted unanimously on 4/12/22, that a plan provided by Killingly Engineering Associates be considered the 'asbuilt' and filed on the Town land records. The as-built has not yet been filed.
 - b) **Notice of Permit Violation VIOL21036**, Permit IWA20022, Marc Baer, 1227 Thompson Rd (Assessor's map 116, block 24, lot 10), grades not as authorized in modified plan approved by the Commission on 2/9/21. Marla Butts received a complaint from an abutter about an additional retaining wall and new stones being brought to the site. Marla will speak with Mr. Baer and the contractor to discuss the approved plan and correct any deviations.
 - c) Notice of Violation VIOL22008, Rodney Lamay, 0 Quaddick Town Farm Road (Assessor's map 160, block 11, lot 15), unauthorized clearing, cutting & grading in wetlands, issued by Acting Wetland Agent 3/21/22. A brush fire occurred in the vicinity on 8/6/22, and characteristics of the original complaint were described by the Fire Marshall. Connecticut DEEP is conducting an investigation into the fire and will forward the results to the Town.

H) Other Business

- a) Draft Subdivision Regulations Marla Butts plans to meet with the Town Planner and First Selectman discuss the proposed language. Charlie Obert asked if it was appropriate to have the Town Attorney present. Marla said the Town Attorney should review the final draft.
- I) Citizens Comments None
- J) Reports
 - a) Budget & Expenditures Diane Chapin reported that the Commission has spent 4.5% of the Fiscal Year budget through July 2022.
 - b) Wetlands Agent Report Marla Butts noted that little progress has been made on MS4. Fran Morano spent a few hours working on the ongoing records disposal & retention project. Marla met with New Road property owners to discuss remedies for a newly-created, unwanted watercourse. Marla updated the Commission about the purchase of a shared storage cabinet with the Conservation Agent. She expressed an additional \$200 to the amount previously encumbered would be needed to meet increased costs and shipping. Fran Morano made a motion to allocate an additional \$200 towards the cabinet. The motion was seconded by Diane Chapin. The motion was unanimously APPROVED.
- K) Correspondence none
- L) Signing of Mylars none
- M) Comments by Commissioners
 - Charlie Obert reiterated that subdivision and wetlands regulation changes are long overdue and that it is important that the process is not derailed.
- N) At 8:32 PM, after completion of the agenda, Fran Morano made a motion to adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by Diane Chapin. **The motion was unanimously APPROVED.**

Respectfully submitted,
Dan Malo, Recording Secretary

